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Frank Costa

From: Ray Tyner <RTyner@palmcoastgov.com>
Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 4:12 PM
To: Frank Costa
Subject: RE: Pine Lake Parkway Property

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Good Afternoon, 
The subject property has a FLUM of Mixed-Use and a COM-3 zoning.  The link below is from our Land Development 
Code.  You can find the appropriate uses in the use table. 
https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_coast/codes/land_development_code?nodeId=PACOUNLADECO_CH3ZOUSDIST_
S3.03NOMIUSZODI 
 
Regards, 
Ray 
 
Ray Tyner  

Deputy Chief Development Officer 

160 Lake Avenue 
Palm Coast, FL 32164 

 

Tel: 386-986-3745  

www.palmcoast.gov 

 

 

 

 

  

From: Frank Costa <fcosta@libertyfla.com>  
Sent: Monday, May 8, 2023 12:51 PM 
To: Ray Tyner <RTyner@palmcoastgov.com> 
Subject: Pine Lake Parkway Property 
 
Mr. Tyner: 
 
I am I inquiring on the parcel below as to current zoning, the FLU and allowed uses under the current zoning. 
 
I tried downloading the maps , unfortunately they are not interac ve to zero in on the property in ques on. 
 
 
The property is parcel # 10-11-30-5115-00000-0120,  5.37 acres on Pine lakes Parkway.  Owned by the Hai an Bap st 
Church currently, who has contacted me to poten ally sell the parcel in ques on. 
 
If you could provide me the above informa on, I would be very grateful. 
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Sec. 3.03. - Nonresidential and Mixed Use Zoning Districts.
3.03.01. Purpose of districts.

Neighborhood, General, and High Intensity Commercial Zoning Districts (COM-1, COM-2,
and COM-3)

The purpose of the COM-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) District is to provide
areas for limited commercial and office uses developed at a neighborhood scale
to meet the day-to-day retail and service needs of nearby residents.
The purpose of the COM-2 (General Commercial) District is to provide areas for
general commercial and office uses to meet the community-wide demand for
retail, services, business, and employment opportunities.
The purpose of the COM-3 (High Intensity Commercial) District is to provide
areas for the most intensive commercial uses including, but not limited to, those
that focus on automobile sales and service, outdoor storage, and heavy traffic.

Limited and General Office Zoning Districts (OFC-1 and OFC-2).
The purpose of the OFC-1 (Limited Office) District is to provide areas for limited
office development. This district is primarily intended to provide office support
to larger institutional uses, such as medical offices surrounding hospitals. This
district also allows for limited service and retail uses to meet the needs of office
workers.
The purpose of the OFC-2 (General Office) District is to provide areas for various
types of office uses, such as office parks, corporations, and other business and
employment centers. This district also permits limited service and retail uses to
meet the needs of office workers.

Master Planned Development Zoning District (MPD). The purpose of the Master Planned
Development District is to provide areas where a variety of uses are mixed together in
master planned developments and communities. This district utilizes cohesive
architectural themes and emphasizes accessibility for pedestrians and bicyclists.
Regulations for this district are intended to promote flexibility and creative land use
planning and design concepts. The Master Planned Development District replaces the
Village Center (VGC-1 and VGC-2), Golf Course Community (GCC), Planned Unit
Development (PUD), and Planned Rural Development (PRD) zoning districts. Projects
developed or approved within these former districts are bound to their respective
Development Agreements and the uses that were formerly allowed in those districts;
however, substantial revisions to a Development Agreement, as described in
Subsection 2.09.07, will require an application under the terms and procedures of the
Master Planned Development District and/or a rezoning. Subsection 3.03.04
establishes the development standards for the Master Planned Development District.
Light and Heavy Industrial Zoning Districts (IND-1 and IND-2).

The purpose of the IND-1 (Light and Warehousing Industrial) District is to
provide areas for restricted industrial and warehouse uses of low to moderate
intensities with minimal potential for off-site impacts. This district utilizes
performance standards to ensure that impacts are controlled.
The purpose of the IND-2 (Heavy Industrial) District is to permit a wide range of
intensive industrial uses, which include, but are not limited to, those that are
major users of water, produce greater amounts of hazardous and regulated
waste, storage of significant amounts of chemicals, produce air emissions, or
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E.

F.

G.

substantially impact the landscape through mining and soil extraction. This district utilizes performance
standards to ensure that impacts are controlled to protect the public health, safety, and welfare.

Public/Semipublic Zoning District (PSP). The purpose of the Public/Semipublic District is
to provide areas for government owned facilities, religious institutions, civic buildings,
community club facilities, educational/vocational facilities, nonprofit organization
facilities, and essential public services including, but not limited to, transit facilities,
water and sewer utility plants and related facilities, and electrical power substations.
Parks and Greenways Zoning District (P&G). The purpose of the Parks and Greenways
District is to provide areas for various parks including active recreational facilities as
well as passive open spaces that provide for recreational opportunities. This district
also includes areas for historical sites, outdoor museums, golf courses, driving ranges,
and associated facilities.
Preservation (PRS). The purpose of the Preservation District is to provide for the
protection of valuable and unique natural resource areas. This district allows minimal
development for the purpose of providing public accessibility and basic facilities only.

3.03.02. Nonresidential and Mixed Use Districts—Allowable Uses. The following table contains a list of uses
allowed in each district, and specifies if they are permitted by right (P) or if they require special exception
approval (S) in accordance with Chapter 2. Uses permitted only as accessory to a principal use are noted with
an (A). All uses marked with an (L) have additional limitations specific to that use listed in Chapter 4.

Table 3-4. Nonresidential and Mixed Use Zoning Districts—Use Table

 EXPAND

Specific Use Type

Civic, Nonprofit and Institutional

 Civic Uses: town hall,

libraries, museums

P P P P P S - P - - P

 Civic Uses: police, fire,

postal service

P P P P P P S P - -

 Civic Clubs and

Fraternal Organizations

(L)

P P P P P - - P - - P

 Hospice Services S P P S P - - P - - P

 Hospitals - P P - P - - P - - P
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-1

CO
M

-2

CO
M

-3

O
FC

-1

O
FC

-2

IN
D

-1

IN
D

-2

PS
P

P 
&

 G

PR
S

M
PD

1

https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_coast/codes/land_development_code?nodeId=PACOUNLADECO_CH2REAUENPR
https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_coast/codes/land_development_code?nodeId=PACOUNLADECO_CH4COLISPUSAC
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Specific Use Type

 Houses of

Worship/Religious

Institutions (L)

P P P P P - - P - - P

 Nonprofit

Organizations, (e.g.,

Humane Societies) (L)

P P P P P - - P - - P

Eating, Drinking and Entertainment

 Adult-Oriented

Businesses (L)

- - - - - - P - - - -

 Drinking

Establishments

(without outdoor

entertainment) (L)

- P P - - - - - - - P

 Drinking

Establishments (with

outdoor

entertainment) (L)

- S P - - - - - - - P

 Beer, Wine, and Liquor

Stores (L)

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Cafeterias, Coffee and

Donut Shops, Snack

Bars, Sandwich Shops,

Delicatessens, Bakeries

P P P P P S - P - - P

 Microwbreweries (L) - S P - - P - - - - P
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Specific Use Type

 Performing Arts

Facilities (e.g. dinner

theaters)

S P P - - - - P - - P

 Pizza Delivery

Establishments and

Takeout Places

P P P P P S - - - - P

 Restaurants, Fast Food

(L)

- P P - - - - - - - P

 Restaurants, Sit-Down P P P P P - - - - - P

Educational Facilities

 Elementary/Secondary

Schools (public and

private) (L)

P P P P P - - P - - P

 Colleges/Universities S S P S P - - P - - P

Industrial Uses (L)

 Manufacturing, Heavy

(L)

- - - - - S P - - - -

 Manufacturing, Light

(L)

- - - - - P P - - - P

 Material Recovery

Facilities (e.g. recycling

centers)

- - - - - P P - - - -
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Specific Use Type

 Mining and Soil

Extraction (L)

- - - - - - S - - - -

Laboratories

 Medical and

Diagnostic Laboratories

S P P P P P - - - - P

 Dental Labs P P P P P - - - - - P

Multiuse Building (L) P P S P P - - - - - P

Office, Medical and Professional

 Banks and Credit

Unions

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Building Contractors - S P S P P - - - - P

 Mail Order Facilities P P P P P P - - - - P

 Medical and

Professional Offices

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Outpatient Care

Facilities

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Pharmacies  - P P P P - - - - - -
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Specific Use Type

 Scientific and

Technical (e.g.

architects, engineers,

design, programming,

and consulting)

P P P P P S - - - - P

 Temporary

Employment Agencies

and Management

Services

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Veterinarians (without

kennels/post-operative

care only)

P P P P P - - - - - P

Recreation and Tourism

 Bed and Breakfast

Inns

P P P - - - - - - - P

 Electronic Game

Promotion

Establishments

- S P - - - - - - - P

 Golf Courses, Driving

Ranges, and Country

Clubs

- - - - - - - - P - P

 Hotels - P P P P - - - - - P

 Marinas (Commercial)

(L)

P P P P P P P P S - P
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Specific Use Type

 Motels - P P - - - - - - - P

 Public Parks and

Recreation Facilities

P S S S S S S P - P P

 Recreation, Indoor P P P - - - - - - - P

 Recreation, Outdoor - S P - - - - P P S P

 RV Parks and Camps

(L)

- - - - - - - - P - -

 Shooting and Target

Ranges (indoor)

- - S - - P - - - - -

 Stadiums and

Athletic/Sports Arenas

- - P - - - - P - - P

Residential

 Assisted Living

Facilities, Nursing

Homes

P P P P P - - P - - P

 Caretaker's Dwellings - S S - S S S S S S P

 Community

Residential Homes (7 to

 14 residents)

- - - - - - - - - - P
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https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_coast/codes/land_development_code?nodeId=PACOUNLADECO_CH14GL
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Specific Use Type

 On-site dwelling units

for agents or

employees of principal

use.

- - - - S - - S S S P

 Dormitories S S S - - - - S - - P

Retail Sales and Services

 Art Dealers - P P P P - - - - - P

 Automotive Parts (e.g.

accessories and tires)

- S P - - P - - - - P

 Building Material

Stores (paint, hardware)

P P P - - P - - - - P

 Clothing and

Accessory Stores (e.g.

shoes and luggage)

P P P S P - - - - - P

 Retail (L) P P P - - - - - - - P

 Florists P P P P P - - - - - P

 Food and Beverage

Stores (supermarkets

and specialty foods)

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Furniture and Home

Furnishings Stores

P P P - P P - - - - P
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Specific Use Type

 Home Improvement

Centers

- P P - - P - - - - P

 Large-Scale Retail

Centers (L)

- P P - - - - - - - P

 Lawn and Garden

Equipment and

Supplies Stores

P P P - - P - - - - P

 Model Home Centers

(L)

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Pet (domestic) Stores P P P - - - - - - - P

 Plant Nurseries P P P - - - - - - - P

 Photo Finishing P P P P P - - - - - P

 Small Box Discount

Stores 

- P P - - - - - - - P

 Sporting Goods,

Hobby, Book and Music

Stores

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Used Merchandise

Stores

S P P - - - - - - - P

Service, Business

 Printing and

Publishing

S P P S P P S - - - P
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Specific Use Type

 All other business

services

P P P P P P P - - - P

Service, Personal

 Adult Day Care

Centers

P P P P P - - - - - P

 Bail Bonding - S P - - - - - - - P

 Child Day Care Centers P P P P P - - - - - P

 Funeral Homes S P P S P - - - - - P

 Tarot Card, Psychic,

and Palm Readings

- S P - - - - - - - P

 Tattooing, Body

Piercing, and other

Body Art

- S P - - - - - - - P

 All other personal

service uses

P P P P P P - - - - P

Service, Major

 Heavy Construction

and Land Excavation

Contractors

- - - - - P P - - - -

 Kennels and Animal

Boarding

- S P - - P - - - - P
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Specific Use Type

 Landscaping Services P P P - - P S - - - -

 Machine Shops and

Tool and Die

- - - - - P P - - - -

 Repair Services for

Commercial and

Industrial Machinery

and Equipment

- S P - - P P - - - -

 Truck Stops - - S - - P P - - - -

Training Facilities

 Automobile Driver

Schools

P P P P P - - P - - -

 Technical/Trade

Schools

P P P P P P S P - - P

 Trucks and Heavy

Equipment Driving

Schools

- - P - - P P P - - -

Utilities and Public Works

 Dredge Spoil Disposal - - - - - - - S - - -

 Landfills (for

nonhazardous, organic

debris or construction

debris only)

- - - - - - - S - - -
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Specific Use Type

 L P Gas Dealer and

Bulk Storage

- S P - - P S - - - -

 Municipal Pump

Stations and Well Sites

P P P P P P P P P S P

 Park and Ride Facilities - - - - - - - S - - P

 Power Generation and

Distribution (electric

and gas) Facilities

- S S S S P P P - - -

 Public Works Facilities - - - - - P P P - - -

 Passenger Transit or

Rail Stations

P P P P P S P P - - P

 Solid Waste Transfer

Stations

- - - - - - S S - - -

 Wastewater Treatment

Facilities

- - - - - - - S - - -

 Water Supply Plants - - - - - - - S - - P

 Wireless

Communication

Facilities (L)

L L L L L L L L L L L

Vehicle Sales, Rental, Service, and Repair
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Specific Use Type

 Automotive,

Recreational Vehicle,

and Boat Dealers

- S P - - P - - - - P

 Car Washes - S P - - - - - - - P

 Commercial &

Industrial Machinery &

Equipment Rental and

Leasing

- S P - - P P - - - P

 Convenience Stores

with Fueling Facilities

(L)

P  P P - - - - - - - P

 Motor Vehicle Towing

Services

- - S - - P P - - - P

 Motorcycle Dealers - P P - - P - - - - P

 Service Stations P P P - - P - - - - P

 Taxi and Limousine

Services

P P P - - - - - - - P

 Vehicle Rental/Leasing - S P - - P - - - - P

 Vehicle Repair - S P - - P - - - - P

Warehousing
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Footnotes for Table 3-4:

 Only if use is specifically mentioned within the MPD Development Agreement.

 A medical marijuana treatment center dispensing facility may not be located within 500 feet of the real property that comprises a public
or private elementary school, middle school, or secondary school. F.S. § 381.986 .

 If subject property is within 500 feet of any residential property, a special exception for the use is required in accordance with Section
2.07—Special Exceptions.

3.03.03. Nonresidential and Mixed Use Districts—Dimensional Standards. The following table contains the
dimensional standards for the various uses allowed in each nonresidential and mixed use district. The
following subsections contain additional standards for the various nonresidential mixed use districts.

Table 3-5. Nonresidential and Mixed Use Zoning Districts—Dimensional Standards

Specific Use Type

 Miniwarehouses,

Office Warehouses and

Self-Storage

- S P - - P - - - - P

 

Warehouse/Distribution

Facilities (>50,000 sq ft)

- - S - - S P - - - -

 

Warehouse/Distribution

Facilities (<50,000 sq ft)

- S P - - P S - - - P
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 EXPAND

Zoning District

Standard

Minimum Lot

Size

20,000

sq. ft.

20,000

sq. ft.

30,000

sq. ft.

15,000

sq. ft.

20,000

sq. ft.

20,000

sq. ft.

20,000

sq. ft.

1

acre

NA

CO
M

-1

CO
M

-2

CO
M

-3

O
FC

-1

O
FC

-2

PS
P

IN
D

-1

IN
D

-2

P&
G

https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2022/381.986
https://library.municode.com/fl/palm_coast/codes/land_development_code?nodeId=PACOUNLADECO_CH2REAUENPR_PTIIDEORAGPPPR_S2.07SPEX
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Zoning District

Standard

Minimum Lot

Width 

100' 100' 100' 100' 100' 100' 100' 150' NA

Maximum

Impervious

Surface Ratio

(ISR)

0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.65 0.20

Maximum Floor

Area Ratio (FAR)

0.30  0.40 0.50 0.40 0.40 0.30 0.35 0.45 0.10

Maximum

Building Height 

50' 100' 75' 75' 100' 100' 65' 65' 35'

Interior Side and

Rear Setbacks 

10' 10'  10'  10' 10' 10' 10' 15' 5'

Minimum

Building

Setbacks from

Streets:

 

Arterial/Collector

Road 

25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 35' 35'

 Local Road 20' 20' 20' 20' 20' 20' 25' 35' 10'
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